MINUTES

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

MEMBERS
PRESENT:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

NOTE:

CONVENED:

MINUTES

APPROVAL:

MINUTES

APPROVAL:

H 266 AA

Tuesday, March 11, 2025
1:00 P.M.
Room WW54

Chairman Foreman, Vice Chairman Lenney, Senators Lakey, Guthrie, Nichols,
Bernt, Zito, and Ruchti

Senator Ward-Engelking

The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

Chairman Foreman called the meeting of the Senate Commerce and Human
Resources Committee (Committee) meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

Chairman Foreman moved the minutes approval to the beginning of the agenda.

Senator Ruchti moved to approve the Minutes of February 27, 2025. Senator
Bernt seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

Senator Guthrie moved to approve the Minutes of March 4, 2025. Senator Ruchti
seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

IDAHO BUILDING CODE ACT - Adds to existing law to provide for certain live
virtual re-inspections and to provide for timely inspections and the option for
third-party inspections in certain situations. Representative Wheeler reported
that the Idaho Building Code Act had modernized Idaho's building inspection
process by authorizing live virtual inspections to improve efficiency in permitting and
compliance. It had allowed State and local government inspectors to conduct live
virtual inspections using electronic or visual aids, reducing delays while maintaining
safety standards. Virtual inspections had been restricted for structural assessments
of buildings three stories or higher to ensure structural integrity.

Representative Wheeler stated that additionally, the bill established inspection
timeliness requirements. If an inspection request was not completed within 15
business days, the permit holder may hire a third-party inspector, with costs
reimbursed by the responsible government entity. It also provided a fee refund
mechanism, ensuring that if an inspection failed but no reason was provided
within three days, the permit holder received a 10 percent refund of applicable
fees. These provisions promoted accountability, efficiency, and fairness in Idaho's
building inspection system.

Representative Wheeler noted the implementation of virtual inspections was
expected to reduce administrative burdens and improve efficiency, and potentially
lower operational costs for State and local inspection agencies. There may

be initial expenses related to training and technology adoption for live virtual
inspections. The inspection timeliness reimbursement and fee refund provisions
could impose moderate financial liabilities on State and local governments if delays
or administrative errors occurred frequently. These provisions also created strong
incentives for agencies to process inspections in a timely manner, ultimately
improving efficiency and reducing costly project delays for businesses and
homeowners. Funding for these changes primarily came from existing permit and



DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

MOTION:

inspection fee collections, with no additional State appropriations required. He
asked this bill be sent to the 14th Order of Business for possible amendment.

Senator Guthrie questioned whether third-party inspectors were qualified to make
inspections and what would happen if the government entity disagreed with the
approval. He had asked about the pay structure. Representative Wheeler had
stated that he had worked with Idaho building officials on this legislation and that
third-party inspectors must be International Code Council (ICC) certified. The
government had to refund the price of the permit. Senator Guthrie had queried if
there was a different fee for each inspection. Representative Wheeler had noted
that was often the case, but the fee could be itemized depending on the local unit of
government.

Senator Ruchti referred to Idaho Code § 34-4118, subsection 1, and had noted that
it was clear the division or local government could override a third-party inspection.
Representative Wheeler had stated that the bill incentivized the government to
work in a timely manner. Senator Ruchti had referred to subparagraph 2 of the
refund provision and had stated that even if a third-party inspector was late, the
local government was responsible for the 10 percent refund. Representative
Wheeler had referred to subsection 2, pointing out that it dealt with timely notice if a
reason was not given for a failure. Senator Ruchti had stated it appeared that if
the third-party inspector did not provide timely notice, the local government was
liable for the 10 percent refund. Representative Wheeler had noted that could be
an interpretation, but it was not the intention of the legislation and noted it was clear
that the division or local government could override a third party inspection.

The following testified in support of the bill after hearing about the proposed
amendments: Bret Stoddard, Idaho Association of Building Officials, City of
Rexburg; John Nielson, Director of Building Safety, City of Nampa; and Kelly
Packer, Executive Director, Association of Idaho Cities. Ms. Packer asked that
48 "business" hours be added. She noted that sometimes a small city was too
small, did not have the expertise on staff, and had to contract with outside sources.
After the word "division" on page 2 lines 5 and 6 she asked if "county, third party
inspector" could be added. That made it clear that whoever the contract was with
was actually the one responsible for the refund in the event the inspection was
not done in a timely manner.

Senator Lakey and Ms. Packer discussed whether the entire fee went to the
inspector or if sometimes there was a lump sum paid to the third party inspectors.
Representative Wheeler referred to page 2, line 3 of the bill and stated the bill said
"shall be refunded any fee or portion thereof."

Clay Boecktel, Idaho Association of Counties, testified in support of the bill. He
noted he was originally in opposition to the bill, but he was now in support.

Senator Bernt and Representative Wheeler had discussed whether the city or the
third-party inspector was liable if the inspection took more than two days. They had
talked about how it was the third-party inspector who had to notify the local unit of
government. The city was not responsible for anything after 48 hours. They had
discussed that if a third-party inspector failed the inspection, the contractor had to
"cure" that, which should be standard operating procedure.

Senator Guthrie moved to send H 266 aa to the 14th Order of Business for
possible amendment. Senator Nichols seconded the motion. The motion carried
by voice vote.

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, March 11, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



H 323

DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

CORPORATIONS - Adds to existing law to establish provisions regarding the
protection of vulnerable adults from financial exploitation. Representative
Ehlers explained this legislation enabled the financial industry and investigative
agencies to collaborate, disrupt financial crime, hold financial criminals accountable,
and protect the financial assets of the senior citizens and vulnerable adults of Idaho.

Chairman Foreman had stated that he liked the intent of the bill. He had queried
whether the legislation placed the responsibility to use caution on the banks or
credit unions, rather than on the individual or their friends or family. Representative
Ehlers had stated that individuals and families could take responsibility for the
well-being of the individual. However, in cases of fraud, there was usually pressure
and urgency.

Senator Zito had questioned if a bank could place a hold on her funds if she
was suspected of fraud. Representative Ehlers had explained that there had to
be a fraud element, which was detailed in the bill on page 2. Senator Zito had
asked how a financial institution determined if a person was a victim of fraud.
Representative Ehlers had noted that employees at financial institutions were
trained and experienced in these matters.

Mike Schenck, Chief Executive Officer, Westmark Credit Union, testified in support
of the bill. Mr. Schenck stated the frequency of fraud was an epidemic. He
stated that Westmark had experience and were good at recognizing and advising
members. Some members still went through a transaction with tragic losses.

Senator Nichols had questioned what the process was when Westmark saw
something wrong. Mr. Schenck had stated that members were advised they
could be victimized and exploited. Patrons were advised to pause a transaction
and contact a trusted person. Senator Nichols and Mr. Schenck had discussed
placing a hold on funds if there was suspected fraud, noting that it could not be
done, but advising the person to pause the transaction was effective. However, a
wire transfer to someone identified as a terrorist could be held.

Devon Goodall, LPL Financial, testified in support of the bill. He had explained
that the company had long been a champion of senior investor protection bills
across the country. He had emphasized the importance of State legislation in
providing financial professionals with the ability to report suspicious activity and,
when appropriate, place a hold on transactions or disbursements while authorities
conducted an investigation. Financial professionals were uniquely equipped to
detect fraud due to their strong, long-standing relationships with clients. They
were required to undergo mandatory training by the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority (FINRA) to stay abreast of new fraud schemes and red flags, which had
given them the ability to recognize new trends, see cognitive decline, and quickly
report fraud to resolve situations as fast as possible.

A discussion ensued between Mr. Goodall and Senator Guthrie about cognitive
decline and the possibility of profiling, how banking officials were trained, and
resolving the issue as soon as possible.

Brad Thorne, local law enforcement officer, testified in support of the bill. He
remarked that he was a trainer for financial institutions. Banks did not have the
ability to stop suspicious activity.

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, March 11, 2025—Minutes—Page 3



DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

MOTION:

ROLL CALL
VOTE:

ADJOURNED:

In response to a question from Senator Guthrie, Mr. Thorne explained this bill
only applied to customers at the bank.

Mr. Thorne responded to Senator Lakey's question that there was a court process
for this type of scam and that some banks stopped it with a quick response.

Senator Nichols queried if currently there were things in place that the State was
trying to do to alleviate liability for this type of problem with the banks. Mr. Thorne
remarked that nothing was required.

Terry Derden, Counsel, Ada County Sheriff and on behalf of the Idaho Sheriff's

Association, testified in support of the bill. He stated if the transactions were out
of the ordinary, then that was a red flag. The larger banks were concerned about
liability. In many cases, the larger banks ignored the issue.

Lisa Anderson, Advocacy Director, American Association of Retired Persons
(AARP), testified in support of the bill. She had pointed out that banks did not have
the ability to hold a transaction. Idaho had lost over $40 million to fraud, with nearly
$21 million lost by Idahoans over the age of 60.

Representative Ehlers remarked that other states had this same type of legislation
and asked for the Committee's support.

Vice Chairman Lenney moved to send H 323 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Lakey seconded the motion.

Chairman Foreman called for a roll call vote. Senators Lakey, Guthrie, Nichols,
Bernt, Zito, Ruchti, and Vice Chairman Lenney voted aye. Chairman Foreman
voted nay. The motion carried.

There being no further business at this time, Chairman Foreman adjourned the
meeting at 2:01 p.m.

Senator Foreman
Chair

Linda Kambeitz
Secretary

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, March 11, 2025—Minutes—Page 4



